
  

 
   COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT 
   March 5, 2013 

ARIZONA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 
Fifty-first Legislature – First Regular Session 

 
COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT 

 
Minutes of Meeting 

Tuesday, March 5, 2013 
House Hearing Room 4  --  2:00 p.m. 

 
 
Vice-Chairman Petersen called the meeting to order at 3:15 p.m. and attendance was noted by 
the secretary. 
 

Members Present 
 
Mr. Borrelli Mr. Forese Mr. Quezada 
Mr. Coleman Ms. Hernández Mr. Petersen, Vice-Chairman 
Ms. Dalessandro Mr. Kavanagh Mrs. Ugenti, Chairman 
 

Members Absent 
 
None   
 

Committee Action 
 
SB1283 – DP (6-3-0-0) SB1302 – DP (9-0-0-0) 
SB1292 – DP (8-0-0-1)  
 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
 
SB1283 - county boundary change; study committee - DO PASS 
 
Tom Savage, Majority Intern, explained that SB1283 is an emergency measure that establishes a 
Joint Committee on County Boundary Changes (Attachment 1). 
 
Senator Chester Crandell, sponsor, described the history behind SB1283.  He stated that, in 
previous years, legislation was proposed by Representative Hale and others to enable 
participation in the revenue sharing that the Arizona Constitution allows for municipalities and 
counties.  He described the legislative district formation of the four Indian Nations: Hopi, 
Navajo, White Mountain Apache and San Carlos Apache.  Senator Crandell stated that SB1283 
will create a new county that will reflect these Nations and give them more influence in the 
legislative process; he stated that he conferred with Senator Jack Jackson.  
 
Mr. Quezada asked what the process is to gain influence; Senator Crandell replied that, to 
address the state, citizens must go through their counties. Discussion ensued and Senator 
Crandell indicated that many questions, including the issue of property taxes, will be addressed 
by the study committee created by SB1283. 
 



 
  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT 
  March 5, 2013 2

Representative Albert Hale, explained his opposition to SB1283 and expressed concern that 
Legislative District 7 will be affected.  He stated that the Hopi and Navajo Nations are two of 
seven and that the other five are not identified to be on this study committee.  
Representative Hale informed the Members that currently transaction privilege taxes (TPT) are 
not returned to the Nations and described the distribution formula which sends TPT funds to 
incorporated municipalities; there are no incorporated municipalities on the reservation.   
 
In response to questions, Representative Hale stated that the county that would be formed by 
SB1283 will be a very poor county, as there are no property taxes on the reservation.  
Representative Hale stressed that there is no need for a study committee as this has been tried 
before and it was very divisive; the solution is to add the Nations to the TPT distribution 
formula. 
 
Chairman Ugenti assumed the Chair. 
 
LeRoy Shingoitewa, Chairman, Hopi Tribe, explained his opposition to SB1283.  He stated that 
no one from the Hopi Nation was asked to work on this bill, which will separate all of the Indian 
Nations from the rest of the state.  He distributed a letter which further explains his opposition 
(Attachment 2).  He stated that much of the money taken off the reservation is never returned to 
the Nations. 
 
Chairman Ugenti clarified that legislation in 1982 actually realigned county boundaries and 
SB1283 will create a study committee to evaluate this situation. Mr. Shingoitewa explained that 
he was not aware of this bill until now.  Chairman Ugenti stated that the point of the study 
committee is to ensure that no one is left out of the deliberations.   
 
Arbin Mitchell, Chief of Staff, Navajo Nation, appeared in opposition to SB1283.  He distributed 
and read a letter from Ben Shelly, President of the Navajo Nation (Attachment 3) which stated 
that that SB1283 is not necessary and has the potential to be divisive. 
 
Mike Bielecki, Consultant, Navajo Nation, stated his opposition to SB1283.  He explained that 
the average income on the reservation is $8,000 per year and that 51 percent of the people are 
unemployed.  He stressed that the area cannot finance a new county; 70 percent of  
Navajo-earned dollars are spent off the reservation.  There is no capacity for assessing value 
because there is no property tax.  He expressed concern that SB1283 is "teeing up" a future bill 
that the Navajo government will also be against.   
 
Paula Hale, representing self, stated her strong opposition to SB1283.  She pointed out that the 
study committee is weighted against tribal members and is discriminatory. 
 
Leonard Gorman, Navajo Nation Human Rights, appeared in opposition to SB1283 and 
explained his objections to Senator Crandell's stated intentions to have "them" have a voice in 
state government.  Mr. Gorman stated that, as a Navajo citizen, he already has representation 
with elected Representatives and Senators.  He asked how the Committee will pass this 
legislation without the consent of those who will be affected by it. 
 



 
  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT 
  March 5, 2013 3

Mr. Forese asked if he had had a chance to talk with Senator Crandell.  Mr. Gorman replied that 
he had no chance and just heard of the bill; he reiterated that he is against the formation of a new 
county. 
  
Vice-Chairman Petersen announced the names of those who signed up in opposition to SB1283 
but did not speak: 
Jonathan Nez, Navajo Nation Council, Shonto & Ts'ah Bii Kin 
Jonathan Hale, Navajo Nation Councilman, 22nd Navajo Nation Council 
Joe Shirley, Supervisor of Apache County 
Emily Verdugo, representing self 
 
Vice-Chairman Petersen announced the names of those who signed up as neutral on SB1283 but 
did not speak: 
Leonard Clark, representing self 
Todd Madeksza, Director of Legislative Affairs, County Supervisors Association 
 
Chairman Ugenti asked Senator Crandell to address the stated concerns.  Senator Crandell stated 
that SB1283 will help the Nations get what they want from the Independent Redistricting 
Commission when it created Congressional District 1 and Legislative District 7: to become a 
voting bloc and to obtain revenue sharing.   
 
In response to Chairman Ugenti's question, Senator Crandell stated that he submitted the bill at 
the beginning of the session and had no opposition in the Senate; in fact, Senator Jackson was in 
agreement with the legislation. 
 
Mr. Coleman asked if this will require a vote of the people in the affected counties.  
Senator Crandell replied in the negative, adding that the Legislature can do this.  
Senator Crandell added that this will address how the state can work with the Nations if they are 
sovereign;  it is time to have this discussion. 
 
Discussion ensued on changing the makeup of the study committee to include more Indian 
Nation members.  
 

Vice-Chairman Petersen moved that SB1283 do pass.  The motion carried by 
a roll call vote of 6-3-0-0 (Attachment 4). 

 
SB1292 - fire districts; treasurer; authorization - DO PASS 
 
Virginia Carico, Assistant Majority Research Analyst, explained SB1292 states that a designated 
fire district board member who has been given access to the financial books and records of the 
fire district may lawfully access those records (Attachment 5). 
 
Senator Gail Griffin, sponsor, explained that a rural fire district board was denied access to the 
financial records by the board treasurer and SB1292 states that a newly-elected board will be 
given access to all financial records. 
 
Mr. Quezada asked if those financial statements are public records.  Senator Griffin replied in the 
negative. 



 
  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT 
  March 5, 2013 4

 
Vice-Chairman Petersen asked if there is any penalty for denying access.  Senator Griffin replied 
that she does not know of a penalty.  Chairman Ugenti stated that the bill is silent on any penalty. 
 
Vice-Chairman Petersen announced the names of those who signed up in support of SB1292 but 
did not speak: 
Todd Madeksza, Director of Legislative Affairs, County Supervisors Association 
 

Vice-Chairman Petersen moved that SB1292 do pass.  The motion carried by 
a roll call vote of 8-0-0-1 (Attachment 6). 

 
SB1302 - planned communities; design review process - DO PASS 
 
Michelle Hindman, Deputy Director, Majority Research, explained that SB1302 clarifies 
statutory guidelines for new construction in a planned community that has architectural design 
guidelines or other similar rules (Attachment 7). 
 
Spencer Kamps, Deputy Director, Home Builders Association of Central Arizona, explained his 
support for SB1302 which is an important clarification for the construction industry and will 
ensure that provisions dealing with new construction deposits, submitted by owners to a 
homeowners' association, do not bleed into the new home construction that his association 
engages in. 
 
Discussion ensued on how homeowners' association covenants, conditions and restrictions 
(CC&R) documents interact with this legislation. 
 
Vice-Chairman Petersen announced the names of those who signed up in support of SB1302 but 
did not speak: 
Mary Arnold, representing self 
Jeff Sandquist, Robson Communities 
Jason Barraza, Robson Communities 
 
Vice-Chairman Petersen announced the names of those who signed up as neutral on SB1302 but 
did not speak: 
Leonard Clark, representing self 
 

Vice-Chairman Petersen moved that SB1302 do pass.  The motion carried by 
a roll call vote of 9-0-0-0 (Attachment 8). 

 
Without objection, the meeting adjourned at 4:50 p.m. 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
Jane Dooley, Committee Secretary 
April 5, 2013 

 
(Original minutes, attachments and audio on file in the Office of the Chief Clerk; video archives 
available at http://www.azleg.gov)  



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.7
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 5.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


